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FOR THE ATTENTION OF
SHAREHOLDERS

Since trading of shares on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. is 
only in demat form, the shareholders holding shares in physical 
form are requested to get the shares dematerialized. For this 
you are required to open a demat account with any Depository 
Participant (DP) and send the shares to Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent (RTA) through DP for dematerialization. In case 
your shares are not traceable, you may get in touch with the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for the procedure to get the 
duplicate share certificates and/or any other help/clarification. 
The contact detail of RTA are: M/s Skyline Financial Services 
Private Limited, D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 
Phase-1, New Delhi-110020, Ph. Nos. 011-40450193 to 97, 
Email : rai_nisl2007@yahoo.com.
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BOARD REPORT 
 
To Members,  
Nova Iron and Steel Limited  
Registered office: Village-Dagori, 
Tehsil-Belha, Distt.-Bilaspur 
Chhattisgarh 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 31st Annual Report together with Standalone Audited 
Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2023. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

(Rs. in Lacs) 
 

Particulars  2022-23 2021-22 
 (12 Months)  (12 Months)  
Gross Revenue  70308.87 61382.67 
Profit/Loss before Interest, Depreciation 
and Tax 3057.53 2405.75 
Interest & Financial Cost 1725.80 2486.66 
Depreciation & Amortization 991.15 993.01 
Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional item & tax 340.58 (1073.95) 
Exceptional item - - 
Profit/(Loss) after Exceptional item & 
before Tax 340.58 (1073.95) 
Tax Expenses: 
Current Tax 
Deferred Tax  

 
- 

519.92 

 
- 

404.26 
Net Profit/(Loss) after tax (179.34) (1478.21) 

 
 
PERFORMANCE 
During the year under review, the Company achieved highest Gross Sales of Rs.703.09 crores as against 
Rs.613.83 crores in the previous year reflecting growth of 14.54% over the previous year. The EBITDA 
for the year was Rs.30.57 crores as against Rs.24.06 crores in the previous year, up by 27.09% over the 
previous year. However, after providing for interest, depreciation and tax, Company has minimized the 
losses to Rs. 1.79 crore as compare to previous year Rs. 14.78 crore. The performance of the Company was 
satisfactory during the year despite the economy having been impacted by the COVID pandemic. Although 
the year was marked by high volatility in the raw material prices, the Company was able to insulate itself 
to a significant extent. Overall business performance of the Company during the year has been good.  
 
FUTURE OUTLOOK  
Company is in the process of increasing the production capacity of Billet from the existing capacity of 
250000 to 360000 Ton / Annum(Approx) and is under process. We have started project for 1.0 MTPA 
Coal Washery with Coal Handling System towards self-dependence to meet our requirement. Company is 
also in process to start soon for 2 Kilns of 100 TPD each with WHRB based CPP in the year 2023-24 only.  
 
Company have a Private Railway siding served at Dagori Railway Station (3.5 kms approx from plant) and 
is in operation since 2006. We are in the process of bringing the Railway siding inside the plant  premises 
from Railway Station, Dagori (3.5kms apprx form plant), the process for land acquisition / necessary 
approvals is going on.   
 
Presently Company have 33 KV connectivity from Chhattisgarh State Power Distribution Company Ltd. 
(CSPDCL). For stabilization of plant and further expansion, we are in the process of taking 220 KV 



31st ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

5

connectivity from Chhattisgarh State Power Transmission Company Ltd. (CSPTCL) to our plant and is 
under progress.   
 
Fiscal-2023 marked the first full year after the end of Covid pandemic. Business activities remained 
smooth throughout the year, even though some trading sectors& manufacturing units showed suppressed 
demand as well as poor capacity utilization. Over previous year the Company has entered operation and 
Management Agreement with M/s R.K. Sponge Iron Pvt. Ltd. The performance of said Agreement was 
satisfactory. The tenure of said operation and management agreement ended on 30/06/2023 and now 
company is controlling the operation and management. The Company is taking all necessary measures in 
terms of mitigating the impact of the challenges being faced in the business. It is focused on controlling the 
fixed costs, maintaining liquidity and closely monitoring the supply chain to ensure that the manufacturing 
facilities operate smoothly. In addition, efforts would continue for cost control, and efficient utilization of 
all our resources. 
 
CAPITAL & RESERVES 
During the year there is no change in the capital of the Company. Company has not transferred any amount 
to the General Reserve. Balance of profit has been transferred to Reserve and Surplus.   
 
DIVIDEND 
In view of Loss during the year, Board of Directors has not recommended Dividend for distribution. 
 
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 
There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year. 
 
BOARD MEETINGS 
During the financial year Eight meetings of Board of Directors of the Company held including one 
Meeting of the Independent Directors.  
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Composition of Audit Committee comprises, 3(three) members, Mrs. Sumiran Aggarwal, Independent 
Director, Mr. Suraj Prakash Choudhary, Independent Director and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Yadav, Director. Mr. 
Suraj Prakash Choudhary is Chairman of the Committee. Audit Committee have powers and authority as 
provided under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 
2015, in accordance with the terms of reference specified by the Board of Directors from time to time. 
Board has accepted all recommendations of the Committee made during the year. During the year 7 
meeting of audit committee held and committee has reviewed related party transactions periodically. 
 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN  
The extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 under Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and rules made 
thereunder is at Annexure -1 attached to Board‟s Report. 
 
AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORTS  
The Board of Directors have appointed M/s MNRS & Associates, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi 
(FRN: 018340N) as Statutory Auditors of the Company in Annual General Meeting held on 30/11/2022 
for a term of five consecutive years to hold the office from t he conclusion of 30th Annual General 
meeting until the conclusion of the 35th Annual General Meeting.. 
 
The Auditors in their Report to the members, have given qualified opinions and the explanations of Board 
with respect to it in pursuant to section 134(3)(f) of Companies Act, 2013 are as follows:  
 
Explanations to note on Basis for Qualified opinion of Independent Auditor ‟s Report. 
 
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment register has contained full particulars and updating with particular as 
described under the Companies (Auditor‟s Report) Order, 2020.  Further management is implementing a 
systematic procedure for physical verification at regular intervals. 
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(b) To identify supplier registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, 
company is in process to make an operating procedure in due course. 
 
(c) Company has sent confirmation letters to outstanding trade receivables, trade payables, 
pending security deposits and advances to suppliers during previous year. However, no response 
was received till date. Company shall obtain the confirmation during the current year for the 
outstanding balances. 
 
(d) Company will try to adhere with the opinion made by the auditor with respect to recognise 
loss allowance for expected credit loss on financial assets based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 
approach of lifetime expected credit losses or 12-months expected credit losses depending on 
credit risk. Necessary steps shall be taken to comply with the same. 
 
(e) The company's outstanding borrowings as at 31-March-2023 are under disputes. 
 
(f) Shivalikview Steel Trading Pvt. Ltd. is one of group company. The amount remitted is only to 
mitigate some expenses which is repayable on demand as mutually agreed. 
 
(g) Due to some unavoidable circumstances, there is some delay in payments, which shall be 
cleared in due course. 
 
(h) The Management is contesting the borrowings and also trade payable of Rs.68.22 crores from 
Bhushan Power and Steel Limited and disputing that such demand is not due and payable, copy of 
the all correspondence has been provided to the auditors. 
 
(i) Company will try to adhere with the opinion made by the auditor with respect to the 
impairment of non-financial assets and impairment testing and will provide the same in the near 
future. 
 
(j) Company has not entered in to any transaction with the companies which have been strike off 
under CA, 2013. Company is implementing the procedure to identify details of struck off 
companies with Ministry of Corporate Affairs portal and sending lett ers of confirmation. 
 
(k) Company has already appointed Mr. Birender Kumar Bhardwaj, as Chief Financial Officer of 
the Company w.e.f. 30/06/2023 in compliance with Section 203 of CA, 2013. 
 
(l) Company will try to adhere with the opinion made by the auditor with respect to measuring the 
amortised cost of security deposits, the information related to this has already provided and any 
other information will provide the same in the near future. 
 
(m) Company is taking necessary steps to measure the contingent liabilities and pending 
litigations and accordingly company will make provision or necessary arrangements against said 
contingent liabilities. 
 
Explanations to note on Basis for Emphasis of Matter of Independent Auditors Report.: 
 
(a) The Company has designated its investments in equity shares at fair value through other 
comprehensive income in terms of Ind AS 109. Both the investee companies had conducted 
valuation of their equity shares dated 29-Mar-2023 under the provisions of Rule 11UA of the 
Income Tax Rules, 1962. The Company has used such valuation reports to arrive at the fair value 
as at 31-March-2023. The management believes that valuation techniques under such statute are 
appropriate in the circumstances. 
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(b) Company will try to adhere with the opinion made by the auditor with respect to one of the 
bank accounts of the Co. is dormant, company is contacting with the bank and provide 
confirmation in the near future. 
 
(c) Company will try to adhere with the opinion made by the auditor with respect to capitalization 
of certain items of stores and spares, company will provide the details of such items in the near 
future. 
 
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 
In terms of Section 204 of the Act read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s K.V. Bindra & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, 
Chandigarh as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company, has conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial 
year 31/03/2023 and submitted Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR-3. A copy of the Secretarial 
Audit Report is at Annexure -2 attached to Board Report. 
 
COST AUDIT 
Pursuant to Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Company is required to maintain cost records as 
specified by the Central Government and accordingly such accounts and records are made and maintained. 
Accordingly, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 20/09/2022 has appointed M/s. J.K. Kabra & 
Company, Cost Accountant, Delhi, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, for auditing the cost 
records of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23. Appropriate resolution seeking your ratification of 
the remuneration of Cost Auditors, is included in the Notice convening the 31st Annual General Meeting of 
the Company. 
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL  
Company‟s Board is duly constituted which is in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 
and SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. 
 
Since last Financial year, the following changes have taken place in the Directorship/KMPs of the 
Company. 
 
Sh. Dinesh Kumar Yadav, has been re-designated as Whole Time Director of the Company w.e.f. 
07/02/2023. 
Sh. Hardev Chand Verma, has resigned from the position of Whole Time Director of the Company w.e.f. 
19/01/2023 and he will continue as Non-Executive Director. 
Mr. Birender Bhardwaj has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. 30/06/2023. 
 
None of the Directors has incurred disqualification under Section 164 of the Act or liable to cease director 
under section 167 of the Act. 
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT  
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, with regard to Directors‟ Responsibility Statement, your 
Directors hereby confirm that: 
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, for the year ended 31/03/2023 the applicable accounting 

standards have been followed to the extent of its applicability alongwith proper explanation 
relating to material departures and the annual accounts have been prepared in compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;  

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for 
the year;  

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care of the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.  
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(e)    the internal financial controls to be followed by the company were laid down and such internal 
financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively. 

(f) proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were devised. 
 
DIRECTOR IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (DIN) 
Present Directors have obtained Director Identification Number (DIN) under Director Identification Rules, 
2006 which is valid DIN under Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES 
Board of Directors of the Company has approved a policy for nomination and remuneration for directors , 
KMP and other employees containing interalia criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 
independence of a director, payment of Managerial remuneration, and other related matters is at 
Annexure -3 attached to the  Board‟s Report which can be assessed at Company‟s weblink; 
http://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/Remuneration%20Policy.pdf. 
 
PARTICULARS RELATING TO TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, CONSERVATION OF 
ENERGY & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
Information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Act regarding conservation of Energy, Technology 
Absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo is enclosed at Annexure – 4 attached to Board‟s Report. 
 
INTERNAL AUDITORS AND ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS  
Company has appointed M/s Ankit Singla & Co., Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor of the 
Company. Internal control framework of the Company is adequate and commensurate with the nature of 
the business and size of the Company. The internal auditors monitor and evaluate the efficacy and 
adequacy of Internal Financial Control system in the company, its compliance with operating system, 
accounting procedures and policy. Internal Auditors submit his report to Audit committee yearly. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEE, INVESTMENT OR PROVIDING SECURITY  
During the financial year, Company has neither given loan nor given guarantee nor provided security or 
made investment u/s 186 of the Act. (Please refer notes attached to financial statements of the Company in 
respect of investments of the Company). 
 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES  
During the year under review, there is no contract and arrangement entered into by the Company with 
related parties referred to in sub–section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence no 
disclosure in Form AOC-2 is required to be attached with Board‟s Report.  
 
EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION 
Company has not issued Sweat Equity Shares or ESOP (Employees Stock Option) to its employees. 
 

LISTING 

The Equity shares of the company are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company has paid listing 
fees to the Stock Exchange for the FY 2023-24.  
Further, during the year trading of securities of the Company was suspended by Bombay Stock Exchange 
Limited due to penal provision of non-compliance of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. However, 
company has complied with said regulations and file an application for Revocation of Suspension of 
Trading of Securities with Bombay Stock Exchange. In response to our said application Bombay Stock 
Exchange  has waive off the maximum penalty and revoked the suspension of trading w.e.f. 03/04/2023.  
 
BUY BACK OF SHARES 
During the year, Company has not made buy back of its shares nor it has given any loan for purchase of its 
own shares. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
Board of Directors has adopted a Risk Management Policy/Plan for the Company, whereby, risks are 
broadly categorized. The Policy outlines the parameters of identification, assessment, monitoring and 
mitigation of various risks which are key to business objectives which is also available at Company‟s 
weblink: http://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/Risk%20Management%20Policy.pdf.  
 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD 
During the year under report Board of Directors evaluated performance of Committees and all the 
individual Directors including Independent Directors and concluded by affirming that the Board 
summarizing as a whole as well as all of its Directors, individually and the Committees of the Board 
continued to good governance and contribute its best in the overall growth of the organisation.  
Independent Directors also held separate meeting to evaluate annual performance of Chairman and 
executive directors and expressed satisfaction on their performance.  
 
DEPOSITS  
During the year under report, company has not accepted any deposits under Chapter V of the Act, from the 
public and as such no amount of principal or interest was outstanding on the date of Balance Sheet. 
Information under Rule 8(5)(v)(vi) of Companies (Accounts), Rules 2014 be treated as Nil. 
 
SEGMENT REPORTING 
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing / trading of Iron & Steel, Metals, 
Securities & Natural Resources business. So accordingly no segment report required to be disclosed. 
 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS  
During the year there was no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and Company‟s operations in future. 
 
PARTICULARS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY 
Details pursuant to section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is at Annexure -5 attached to the Board‟ Report. 
During the year no employee has remuneration equal to or more than prescribed limit under Rule 5(2) and 
5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, hence 
information under these rules be treated as NIL. Pursuant to MCA Notification dated 30.06.2016 detail of 
top ten employees as attached to Board Report is at Annexure -6. 
 
CODE OF CONDUCT 
Declaration pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 in respect of compliance 
with code of conduct by Whole Time Director/CEO is at Annexure -7 attach to the Board Report. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY 
Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. Mr. Hardev Chand Verma, 
Director, Mr. Dinesh Kumar Yadav, Whole Time Director and Mr. Suraj Prakash Choudhary, Independent 
Director are members of the Committee. Mr. Suraj Prakash Choudhary is the Chairman of the Committee. 
On the recommendation of CSR Committee, CSR Policy of the Company has been approved by the Board 
which is uploaded at Company‟s weblink: http://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/CSR%20Policy.pdf. The 
Annual Report on CSR activities as per Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is 
at Annexure -8 attached to the Board‟s Report.  
 
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES  
Company do not have Subsidiary or Associates or Joint Venture company. Therefore, consolidated 
financial statement in form AOC -1 annexed to the Board‟ Report is not applicable. 

 
MATERIAL CHANGE(S)  
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between 
the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relate and the date of this Report. 
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GENERAL 
 
(i) ENVIRONMENT & OTHER APPLICABLE LAW  

The Company is committed to the protection of environment and is not involved in any activity 
hazardous to environment. The Company adheres to the provisions of the applicable provisions of 
environment laws. 
 

(ii) HEALTH & SAFETY 
In order to build a sustainable work place environment, a common health and safety management 
system is being implemented. All efforts are being made to enhance safety standards and processes 
in order to minimize safety risks in all our operations.  
 

(iii) SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN 
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace. During the 
Financial Year 2022-23, the Company has received no complaints of sexual harassment since there 
is no female employee. 
 

(iv) INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
Relations between the Management and its Employees/ Workmen have been cordial and 
management expressed their appreciation for the co-operation and dedication of the 
employees/workmen at all levels of the Company. 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
Your Directors convey their sincere thanks to the Bankers, various departments in Central and State 
Governments and all others associated with the Company for their co-operation, continued support and 
confidence reposed by them in the Company. 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 
 
 
 

(H.C. Verma)
Chairman

DIN:00007681

 
 
 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 14/08/2023 

 
  

 
VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY  
Company has in place a composite „Vigil Mechanism‟ Policy/Whistle Blower Policy available to the 
employees and directors to blow the whistle/ highlight any fraud, irregularity, wrongdoing etc. which is 
also available at weblink: https://www.novaironsteel.com/pdf/vigil%20mechanism.pdf Board‟s Report in 
compliance of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
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ANNEXURE 1

Form No. MGT - 9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
 

i.  CIN L02710CT1989PLC010052 
ii.  Registration Date   01/05/1989 

iii.  Name of Company Nova Iron & Steel Limited 
iv.  Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by shares/ Indian Non-    government Company. 
v.   Address of the Registered office and contact 

details 
Village-Dagori, Tehsil Belha, Bilaspur, Chhattisgarh -495224  
Tel:07752-285217, Fax:07752-285213 
Email: rai_nisl2007@yahoo.com 

vi.  Whether listed company Yes 
vii.  Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar 

and Transfer Agent, if any 
Skyline Financial  Services Private Limited, D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla 
Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi 1100020, Tel+91 11 40450193 to 97 

 
 
II.    PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: 
 

Sl. No. Name and Description of main products/ 
services 

NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the company 

1. Iron & Steel 271 99.29 

 
III .   PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND JOINT VENTURE, ASSOCIATE 

COMPANIES 
S. No 
 

Name and address of the 
company 

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
subsidiary 
/Associate 

% of equity 
shares held 

Applicable section 

Nil 

 
IV.     SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 
i) Category-wise Share Holding 
 

Category of 
Shar eholders  

No. of Equity Shar es held at the beginning of the year  No. of Equity Shar es held at the end of  the year  % 
Cha nge 
duri ng 
the year  

 Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Equity 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Equity 
Shares 

 

A. PROMOTERS           
(1) Indian           
(a)Individual/HUF  4355000 0  4355000  12.05  4355000 0  4355000  12.05 - 
(b)Central  Govt.     - - - - - 
(c) State Govt.     - - - - - 
(d)Bodies Corp.  20873821 0  20873821  57.76  20873821 0  20873821  57.76 - 
(e)Banks/FI - - - - - - - - - 
(f)Any other… - - - - - - - - - 

Sub - Total (A ) (1) : - 25228821 0 25228821 69.81 25228821 0 25228821 69.81 - 
(2)  FOREIGN           
(a) NRIs- Individuals - - - - - - - - - 
(b) Other- Individuals - - - - - - - - - 
(c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - - 
(d) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - - 
(e) Any other……. - - - - - - - - - 
Sub - Total(A ) (2) : - - - - - - - - - - 

Total Shareholding of 
Promoter (A)  = 
(A)(1)+A(2) 

25228821 0 25228821 69.81 25228821 0 25228821 69.81 - 

B. Public Shareholding           
1.  INSTITUTIONS           
a) Mutual Funds 3600 472296 475896 1.32 3600 472296 475896 1.32 - 
b) Banks /FI 0 144 144 0 0 144 144 0 - 
c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - - 
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - - 
e) Venture Capital Funds  - - - - - - - - - 
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f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - - 
g) FIIs - - - - - - - - - 
h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

i)  Others (Specify) - - - - - - - - - 
Sub - Total (B ) (1) : - 3600 472440 476040 1.32 3600 472440 476040 1.32 - 
2.NON-INSTITUTIONS  
(a) BODIES 

CORP.  
         

(i) Indian 1924543  16944   1941487  5.37 1921659  16344  1938003  5.36  -0.01 
(ii) Overseas     - - - - - 
(b) INDIVIDUALS           
(i) Individual 

Shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital 
uptoRs. 1 Lakh   

1989799 5494038 7483837 20.71  1996887 5483424  7480311   20.70 -0.01 

(ii) Individual 
Shareholders 
holding nominal 
share Capital in 
excess of Rs. 1 
Lakh 

 738723  43872  782595  2.17  738723  43872  782595 2.17 - 

(c) Others  
(Specify) 

         

Non-Resident 
Indian (NRI) 

24576 1423921 166968 0.46  24673  142128  166801  0.46  0 

Trust 72 0 72 - 96 0 96 0 - 
 HUF 58133 120 58253 0.16 58634 120  58754 0.16 0 
 Clearing 

Member 
 1415 0 1415 0 8067 0 8067 0.02 0.02 

 Sub - Total  
(B ) (2) :- 

 4737261  5697366  10434627  28.87 4748739 5685888 10434627 28.87 0 

 Total 
Shareholding 
(B)= 
(B)(1)+(B)(2) 

 4740861  6169806  10910667  30.19 4752339 6158328 10910667 30.19  

C. Shares held by 
custodian for 
GDRs & ADRS 

    - - - - - 

 Grand Total  
(A+B+C) 

29969682 6169806  36139488  100.00 29981160 6158328 36139488 100.00 - 

 
(ii)   Shareholding of Promoters  
 

Sr.     
No. 

Shar eholder ’s Name  Shar eholding at the beginning of the year  Share holding at the end of the year  % change in Equity 
share holding during 
the year 

No. of Equity 
Shares 

%of total 
Equity 
Shares of 
the company 

%of Equity Shares 
Pledged/ 
encumbered to total 
Equity shares 

No. of Equity 
Shares 

%of total 
Equity Shares 
of the company 

%of Equity 
Shares Pledged/ 
encumbered to 
total Equity 
shares 

1 
*Bhushan Power & 
Steel Ltd. 

9269146 25.65 - 9269146 25.65 - - 

2 
Ambey Steel and Power 
Pvt. Ltd. 

959675 2.66 - 959675 2.66 -  

3 Aniket Singal 4345000 12.02 - 4345000 12.02 -  

4 
Shivalikview Steel 
Trading Private Limited 

94000 0.26 - 94000 0.26 - - 

5 
Vintage Steel Private 
Limited 

94000 0.26 - 94000 0.26 - - 

6 
Olympian Steel 
Industries Limited 

94000 0.26 - 94000 0.26 - - 

7 
Titanic Steel Industries 
Limited 

94000 0.26 - 94000 0.26 - - 

8 
Aromatic Steel Private 
Limited 

3418000 9.46 - 3418000 9.46 -  

9 
Aarti Iron & Power 
Limited 

94000 0.26 - 94000 0.26 - - 

10 
Rockland Steel Trading 
Private Limited 

94000 0.26 - 94000 0.26 - - 

11 
RGF Holiday Resorts 
Private Limited 

 3332000 9.22 -  3332000 9.22 -  

12 
RGF Real Estate Private 
Limited 

 3331000  9.22 -  3331000  9.22 -  

13 Priyanka Ankit Miglani 5000 0.01 - 5000 0.01 -  
14 Radhika Saurabh Dhoot 5000 0.01 - 5000 0.01 -  
 Total 25228821 69.81 - 25228821 69.81 - - 

* JSW declared Bhushan Power &  Steel Limited as Public Shareholder in terms of Resolution Plan approved by th e    Adjudicating Authority. 
However, the matter is still sub judice before the hon'ble Supreme Court.  
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(iii)   Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 
 
Sr. 
no. 

Name of the 
Promoters 

At the Beginning of 
The year  

Date wise increase / decrease in shareholding 
specifying reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. 
allotment /transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year  

At the end of the year (or on 
the date of separation, if 
separated during the year) 

  No of 
Equity 
Shares  

%age to 
total Eq. 
Shares 

As on Benpos 
Date  

No of 
Equity 
Shares 

Reasons  No of Equity 
Shares  

%age to 
total Eq. 
Shares 

No of 
Equity 
Shares  

%age to total 
Eq. Shares 

----- NIL ----- 

 

(iv)   Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

 
Sr. 
No
. 

Name of 
Shareholder 

At the beginning of the 
year 
  

Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding 
specifying reason for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.) 

Cumulative 
shareholding during 
the year 

At the end of year (or 
on the date of 
separation, if separated 
during the year) 

 For Each of the 
Top 10 
Shareholders 

No of 
Equity 
Shares 

% to total 
Equity 
Shares 

As on Benpos 
Date 

No of 
Equity 
Shares 

Reasons No of 
Equity 
Shares 

% to 
total 
Equity 
Shares 

No of 
Equity 
Shares 

% to 
total 
Equity 
Shares 

1 

 

Shrim Investment 
Solutions Private 
Ltd. 

 1624072 4.49 19.08.2022 204474 Transfer 204474 0.57  1828546  5.06 

2 Raj Kumar Kedia 181237 0.50 - - - - - 181237 0.50 

3 
Indian Bank 

  
145392 

0.40 
  - - - - - 

145392 
0.40 

  

4 
Stock Holding 
Corpn of India Ltd  96576 0.27 - - - - -  96576 0.27 

5 Canara Bank 87576 0.24 - - - - - 87576 0.24 
6 Bank of India  61920 0.17 - - - - - 61920 0.17 

7 
Yogesh 
Chandrakant Asher 54015 0.15 - - - - - 54015 0.15 

8 Vandana Bajaj  49083  0.14 - - - - -  49083  0.14 
9 Kanwaljit Singh 47280 0.13 - - - - - 47280 0.13 

10 Dhanraj Singh 46576 0.13      46586 0.13 
11 Shrigauri Buildtech 

Pvt Ltd 
204474 0.57 

19.08.2022 -204474 Transfer - - 0 0.00 

 
(v)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:  
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the 
Shareholder  

At the Beginning of 
the year  

Date wise increase / decrease in 
shareholding specifying reasons for 
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment 
/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) 

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 
the year  

At the end of the year 
(or on the date of 
separation, if separated 
during the year) 
 

 For each of the 
Directors and 
KMP 

No of 
Equity 
Shares  

%age to 
total Eq. 
Shares 

As on 
Benpos 
Date  

No of 
Equity 
Shares 

Reasons  No of 
Equity 
Shares  

%age to 
total Eq. 
Shares 

No of 
Equity 
Shares  

%age to 
total Eq. 
Shares 

1 H.C. Verma - - - - - - - - - 
2 Dinesh Kumar 

Yadav 
- - - - - - - - - 

3 Suraj Prakash 
Choudhary 

- - - - - - - - - 

4 Sumiran 
Aggarwal 

- - - - - - - - - 

5 Dheeraj Kumar - - - - - - - - - 
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
 

 Secured Loans 
Excluding deposits 
(Rs.) 

Unsecured Loans (Rs.) Deposits(Rs.) Total Indebtedness 
(Rs) 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial y ear  
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid* 
iii) Interest accrued but not due 

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

 
2762235378  

556517940 
0 

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

 
2762235378  

556517940 
0 

To tal (i+ii+iii) NIL 3318753318 NIL 3318753318 
Change in Indebtedness during the f inancial year  
i) Addition 
ii) Reduction 

NIL 
NIL 

 
154577639 
157526221 

NIL 
NIL 

 
154577639 
157526221 

Net Change  NIL -2948582 NIL -2948582 
Indebtedness at the  end of the financ ial year  
i)  Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid * 
iii) Interest accrued but not due 

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

 
2601779142 
705308745 

0 

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

 
2601779142 
705308745 

0 

To tal(i+ii+iii) NIL 3307087887 NIL 3307087887 

 
 
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager
 

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount 
(Rupees) Dinesh Kumar Yadav 

(Whole Time Director) 
Hardev Chand 

Verma (Director)  
1 Gross salary 

(a)Salary as per provisions contained in section17(1) of the Income-
Tax Act,1961 
(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)Income-taxAct,1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of Salary under Section 17 (3) Income Tax, 1961  

 
 1745970 

 
- 
- 

 
 1325000 

 
- 
- 

 
3070970  

 
- 
- 

2 Stock Option - - - 
3 Sweat Equity - - - 
4 Commission 

-  as% of profit 
-  others, specify… 

- - - 

5 Others, please specify - - - 
 Total(A) 1745970 1325000 3070970 
 Ceiling as per the Act Remuneration payable by company having no profit or 

inadequate profit as per Section II of Part II of Schedule V of 
Companies Act, 2013 is Rs. 84 lakhs. 

 
 
B. Remuneration to other directors:
 

Sl.  
no. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 
Amount Suraj Prakash Choudhary Sumiran Aggarwal 

1 
 
 
 
 

Independent Directors 
·Fee for attending board committee meetings 
·Commission 
·Others, please specify (Travelling Exp.) 

- 
 

176200 

 
 

33770 

 
 

209970 

 Total(1) 176200 33770 209970 
2 Other Non-Executive 

Directors 
·Fee for attending board committee meetings 
·Commission 
·Others, please specify 

- 
- 
- 

- 
- 
- 

- 
- 
- 

 Total(2) - - - 
 Total(B)=(1+2) - - - 
 Total Managerial 

Remuneration 
176200 33770 209970 

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act 
 

Remuneration payable by company having no profit or inadequate profit as 
per Section II of Part II of Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013 is Rs. 84 
lakhs. 
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C.    R� EMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/ MANAGER / WTD
 

 
Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

  
CEO 

 

Company 
Secretary 

 
CFO Total 

1 Gross salary 
(a)Salary as per provisions contained in section17(1) of the 
Income-Tax Act,1961 
(b)Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Income-Tax Act,1961 
(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section17(3)Income-Tax 
Act,1961 

 
- 

 
 844649 

 
- 

 
 844649 

2 Stock Option - - - - 
3 Sweat Equity - - - - 
4 Commission 

-  as % of profit 
- - - - 

5 Others, please specify - - - - 
 Total -  844649 -  844649 

 
VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 
 

Type              Section of the 
Companies Act 

Brief Description Details of Penalty/ 
Punishment/ 
Compounding fees 
imposed 

Authority  
[ RD/ NCLT/ 
COURT] 

Appeal made, 
if any (give 
Details) 

A. COMPANY  
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
B. DIRECTORS 
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 
 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 14/08/2023 
 

  
 

 
(H.C. Verma)

Chairman
DIN:00007681

 
 
 



31st ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

16

ANNEXURE  2

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members 
Nova Iron and Steel Limited
Village Dagori, Tehsil Belha, Bilaspur
(CIN: L02710CT1989PLC010052)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Nova 
Iron and Steel Limited (hereinafter called 'the Company'). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and 
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby 

streport that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31  March, 2023 (Audit Period) complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year 
stended on 31  March, 2023 according to the provisions of: 

i.    The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

ii.   The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment,  
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

-     There was no Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings as per the information 

provided to us. 

v.   The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; No such 

transaction during the period under review

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; No such transaction during the 

period under review

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018- No such 

transaction during the period under review

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and The Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (with effect from 13th August, 2021)- No 

such transaction during the period under review

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (with effect from 16th August, 2021) - No such 

transaction during the period under review
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 

Companies Act 2013 and dealing with client - No such transaction during the period under review
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and The Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (with effect from 10th June 2021)- No such transaction during the 
period under review

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - No such transaction during the period 
under review
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India for Board and General Meeting

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

During the period under review, as per the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the management, the 
Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except trading 
of securities of the Company was suspended by Bombay Stock Exchange Limited due to penal provision of non-compliance of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. However, company has complied with said regulations and file an application on 26/05/2022 for Revocation of Suspension of 
Trading of Securities and for waive off penalty with Bombay Stock Exchange. In response to said application Bombay Stock Exchange has waived 
off the maximum penalty and revoked the suspension of trading w.e.f. 03/04/2023. 

We further report that we have relied upon the representation made and other documents provided by the Company, its officers and on the 
examination of the same on test check basis, the Company has complied with the following applicable laws:

1. The Factories Act, 1948;
2. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936and The Payment of Wages (Amendment) Act, 2017;  
3. The Payment of Bonus Act,1965 and The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015;
4. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;
5. The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946;
6. The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947;
7. The Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948;
8. The Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;

9. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986;

10.     Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016;

11. The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;

12. The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;

13. The Boilers Act, 1923 and The Indian Boilers (Amendment) Act, 2007. 

We further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act. However, the Company did not comply with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 in regard to 
the appointment of Chief Financial Officer of the Company

Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in 
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All the decisions of the Board of Directors were approved unanimously or by majority and were recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

                                        FOR KV BINDRA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES                                                                                                                

Karan Vir Bindra
Proprietor 

                                                                                                                              M. NO. FCS 10074
                                                                                                                             CP No. 12962

UDIN – F010074E000600862
                                                                            PEER REVIEW NUMBER- 2522

PLACE: MOHALI
DATE: 13.07.2023
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ANNEXURE 3
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

(FOR THE DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES)

1. Regulatory Requirement 
Pursuant Section 178 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013, (Act) and rules made thereunder and SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations 2015, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“Committee”) shall formulate the criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, 
relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.
The Policy has been framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors and based on its 
recommendation, approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The policy may be reviewed by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors. 

2. Purpose 
Remuneration Policy (“Policy”) provides a framework for remuneration to be paid to the members of the Board of 
Directors (“Board”) and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) of the Company (collectively referred to as “Executives”). 
The expression KMP shall have the same meaning as defined under the provisions of Act. The Policy also provides a 
framework for identification of persons who are qualified to become directors.

3. Objectives 
3.1 The remuneration policy seeks to enable the company to provide a well-balanced and performance-related compensation 

package, taking into account shareholder interests, industry practices and relevant Indian corporate regulations. 
3.2  The remuneration policy will ensure that the interests of Executives are aligned with the business strategy and risk 

tolerance, objectives, values and long-term interests of the company and will be consistent with the "pay-for-performance" 
principle. 

3.3 The remuneration policy will ensure that remuneration to Executives involves a balance between fixed pay and incentive (by 
way of increment/bonus/ promotion/any other form) reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to 
the working of the company and its goals. 

4. Principles of Remuneration and Criteria for determining Remuneration 
4.1� The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors and KMP of 

the quality required to run the company successfully;
4.2 Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and
4.3 Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between short and long 

term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals

The criteria for determining the remuneration shall be broadly guided by:
4.4 Skills, 
4.5 Requisite qualification, commensurate with the Job profile
4.6 characteristics and 
4.7 experience in business, government, academics, technology, human resources, social responsibilities, finance, law etc. and 

in such other areas as may be considered relevant or desirable to conduct the Company's business in a holistic manner and 
as may be decided by Committee.

4.8� Director should possess high level of personal and professional ethics, integrity and values. They should be able to balance 
the legitimate interest and concerns of all the Company's stakeholders in arriving at decisions, rather than advancing the 
interests of a particular constituency.

4.9� Directors must be willing to devote time and energy in carrying out their duties and responsibilities effectively. They must 
have the aptitude to critically evaluate management working.

4.10� In case of other employees other than director, KMP, the criteria will be decided by the HR department.

5. Remuneration to Executives 
5.1 Executives may be paid remuneration by way of fixed salary and allowances as per Company rules subject to the provisions 

of Companies Act, 2013
5.2� Personal benefits Executives may have access to benefits/perquisites as per the rules and regulations of the Company. 

Executives may also be entitled to retirement benefits such as provident fund, gratuity and/or such other benefits as per the 
rules of the Company. 

5.3� The Remuneration of other employees other than Executives will be decided by the HR department of the Company in 
accordance with the skill, qualification and etc. 

6. Remuneration to non-executive Directors 
6.1� Non - Executive Directors may be paid remuneration by way of sitting fee and reimbursement of expenses for participation 

in the Board and other meetings and commission and/or such other payments as may be permitted by the law applicable to 
such payments. Such payments shall be subject to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

7. Amendments to this Policy 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is entitled to amend this policy including any amendment or discontinuation 
of one or more incentive programs introduced in accordance with this Policy.

(H.C.Verma)
Chairman

DIN 00007681
Place: New Delhi
Date: 14/08/2023
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ANNEXURE 4

 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:  
 

1 Steps taken or impact on conservation 
of energy 

All business units are continuously putting in their efforts to improve 
energy usage efficiencies and incre ase contributions from renewable 
sources of energy. Energy saving initiatives throughout the plants helped 
the Company in reducing energy cost. 

2 Steps taken by the company for 
utilizing alternate sources of energy 

Use of natural light by placing transparent roof and side glass windows 
in day time for panel manufacturing unit to reach green building 
concepts 

3 Capital investment on energy 
conservation equipment 

Nil 

 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & INNOVATION:  
 

1. 
Efforts in brief made towards technology absorption, adaptation and 
innovation. 

In the past five years no new technology 
has been adopted 

2. 
Benefits derived as a result of above efforts e.g. product improvement, cost 
reduction, product development, import substitution etc. 

NOT APPLICABLE 

3. 
In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years reckoned 
from the beginning of the financial year) following information may be 
furnished. 

NIL 

 a. Technology Imported Not Applicable 

 b. Year of Import  Not Applicable 

 c. Has Technology been fully absorbed. Not Applicable 

 d. 
If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place reason 
thereof and future plan of action. 

Not Applicable 

 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
 

1 
The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the 
year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of 
actual outflows. 

Presently Company is not exporting its 
products in international market. 
Used :  NIL 
Earned :NIL 

 
 
 
 

(H.C.Verma)  
Chairman 

DIN 00007681 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 14/08/2023 

  

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134(3) (M) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND FORMING PART OF 
STTHE DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH 2023
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ANNEXURE 5

  
 

DETAILS PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

 
Relevant 
clause 
u/r 5(1) 

Prescribed Requirement Particulars 

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the 
median remuneration of the employees of the company 
for the financial year 

Ratio of the remuneration of Shri Dinesh Kumar 
Yadav, Whole Time Director to the median 
remuneration of the employees – 1:10.39 

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each 
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the 
financial year 

Sh. Hardev Chand Verma, Director  – 0.0  
Sh. Dinesh Kumar Yadav, Director (Tech.) – 0.0 
Sh. Suraj Prakash Choudhary, Director – 0.0 
Smt. Sumiran Aggarwal, Director –0.0 
Mr. Dheeraj Kumar, CS – 0.0 
 

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of 
employees in the financial year 

13.27% 

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of 
Company 

240 

(v) Average percentile increase already made in the 
salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison 
with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if 
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in 
the managerial remuneration 

Median Remuneration of employees increased 
by 13.27% in FY 2022-23. There is no increase 
in managerial remuneration. 

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the company 

Affirmed 

 

 
(H.C.Verma) 

Chairman 
DIN 00007681 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 14/08/2023 
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ANNEXURE 6
 

Pursuant to Rule 5(2) of Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

Detail of top ten employees in terms of Remuneration drawn 
 

Name Salary Per 
month In 
Rs. 

Designation Nature of 
employment 
whether 
contractual or 
otherwise 

qualification 
and 
experience 
of the 
employee 

date of 
commen-
cement of 
employment 

the age of 
such 
employee 

the last 
employment held 
by such employee 
before joining the 
company 

the percentage of equity 
shares held by the 
employee in the company 
within the meaning of 
clause (iii) of sub-rule (2) 
above and 

Whether any such 
employee is a relative of 
any director or manager 
of the company and if so, 
name of such director or 
manager. 

Mr. Dinesh Kumar 
Yadav 

165000 Director  Contractual Diploma 01.04.2021 50 
Bhushan Power & 
Steel Ltd 

NIL N.A. 

Mr. Mrityunjay Tiwari 100000 
A.G.M. 

(Marketing) 
 Contractual Diploma 26.10.2022 46 

Arcelor Mittal 
Nippon Steel India 
Ltd. 

NIL N.A. 

Mr. Devendra 
Chaudhary 

77815 Manager  Contractual 
Dip In Elect. 
Engg. 

01.05.2019 49 
Bhushan Power & 
Steel Limited 

NIL N.A. 

Mr. Prabhakar Singh 
Thakur 

75161 Manager  Contractual 
Dip In Elect. 
Engg. 

21.02.2019 44 
Top Worth Steel 
& Power Ltd 

NIL N.A. 

Mr. Dheeraj Kumar 74000 CS Contractual CS LLB 01.07.2013 38 
Indswift 
Laboratories Ltd. 

NIL N.A. 

Mr. Dina Nath Singh 60000 AGM Contractual BCom 12.07.2021 61 
Bhushan Power & 
Steel Ltd. 

NIL N.A. 

Mr. Dinesh Kumar 
Tiwari 

60000 
Dy. 

Manager 
(Marketing) 

Contractual 12th 01.09.2022 41 
Bhushan Power & 
Steel Ltd. 

NIL N.A. 

Mr. Saurabh Garg 60000 
Dy. 

Manager 
(Marketing) 

Contractual BCom 01.09.2022 35 
Bhushan Power & 
Steel Ltd. 

NIL N.A. 

Mr. Ashafaque Ali 60000 Manager Contractual M. Sc. 01.08.2022 52 
Bhushan Power & 
Steel Ltd. 

NIL N.A. 

Mr. Sudhir Sharma 59873 
Dy. 

Manager 
Contractual B.E. (Mech.) 25.12.2018 39 

MSP Steel Private 
Limited 

NIL NA 

 
 
 
 

 
(H.C. Verma) 

Chairman 
DIN 00007681 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 14/08/2023 
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ANNEXURE 7  

 

Declaration Regarding Compliance by Board Members and 

Senior Management Personnel with the Code of Conduct 

 
 
 
 
I hereby confirm that the Company has received declaration of Compliance of Code of Conduct as applicable to them 
from the senior management personnel of the Company and the Members of the Board in respect of the Financial 
Year ended 31 st March, 2023. 

 
 
 

(Dinesh Kumar Yadav)  
Whole Time Director  

DIN 07051856  
Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 14/08/2023 
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ANNEXURE 8  
 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR PURSUANT TO RULES 8 & 9 OF COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014 

 
S N Particulars Remarks 
1 A brief outline of the company‟s CSR policy 

including overview of projects or programme 
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to web-
link to CSR policy and projections or programme. 

CSR policy, reflecting ethos of the company, broad areas of 
interest and overview of activities, purposes, rural focus and 
woman empowerment can be reached at 
http://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/csr%/20policy.pdf 
Policy states the list of activities/projects undertaken/to be 
undertaken in future.  

2 The composition of the CSR Committee: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation / Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of Meetings of CSR 
committee held during the year 

Number of meetings of CSR 
committee attended during the 
year 

i) Hardev Chand 
Verma 

Whole Time Director 1 0 

ii) Dinesh Kumar 
Yadav 

Executive Director 
(Technical) 

1 1 

iii) Suraj Prakash 
Choudhary 

Non-executive, 
Independent Director 

1 1 

3 Web link(s) where Composition of CSR 
Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects 
approved by the board are disclosed on the website 
of the company. 

https://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/CSR%20Policy.pdf 

4 Executive summary along with web-link(s) of 
Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in 
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable 

Not Applicable 

5 Details of the amount available for set off in 
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social 
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount 
required for set off for the financial year, if any : 

Not Applicable 

6 Average Net Profit of the company as per section 
135(5) 

Loss Rs. (2607.72) lacs 

7 (a) Two percent of average net profit of the 
company as per 
section 135(5) : 
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 
programmesor activities of the previous financial 
years. : 
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial 
year, if any : 
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year 
(7a+7b-7c). 

Nil 
 
 
NA 
 
 
Nil 
 
Nil 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial years: 
 

Total amount to be spent for the financial year Nil 
amount un spent: 
-Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 
section 135(6) 
-Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5) 

 
NA 
 
 
NA 

 
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year : Not Applicable 
(1) 
Sl. 

No . 

(2) 
Name 

of 
the 

Project 

(3) 
Item from 
the list of 
activities 

in 
Schedule 
VII to the 

Act 

(4) 
Local 
area 

(Yes/No)  

(5) 
Location of the 

project 

(6) 
Project 

duration 

(7) 
Amount 
allocated 
for the 
project 
(Rs. ) 

(8) 
Amount 
spent in 

the 
current 

financial 
Year  
(Rs.) 

(9) 
Amount 

transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account 

for 
the project 

as per 
Section 
135(6) 

(10) 
Mode of 

Implementation 
- 

Direct 
(Yes/No) 

(11) 
Mode of 

Implementation- 
Through 

Implementing 
Agency 

State District Name CSR 
Registration 

number 
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(Rs ) 
1 - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year : Amount in lakhs) 
(1) 
Sl. 

No . 

(2) 
Name of the 

Project 

(3) 
Item from the 

list of 
activities in 

schedule VII 
to 

the Act 

(4) 
Local area 
(Yes/No) 

(5) 
Location of the 

project 

(6) 
Amount spent in 

The current 
Financial Year  

(Rs.) 

(7) 
Mode of 

Implementation 
- Direct 

(Yes/No)  

(8) 
Mode of 

Implementation- 
Through 

Implementing 
Agency 

State District Name CSR Registration 
number 

1 - - - - - - - - - 
 
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : NIL 
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Not Applicable 
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : Not Applicable  
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any : NIL 
 
Sr. No. Particular Amount (Rs. In lacs) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Nil 
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year NA 
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NA 
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the - 

previous financial years, if any 
NA 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii) -(iv)] NA 
 
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Amount ( in lakhs) 
Sl. No. Preceding 

Financial 
Year  

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account under 
section 135 (6) 

(Rs.) 

Amount spent 
in 

the reporting 
Financial Year  

(Rs.) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), 

if any 

Amount remaining 
to be spent in 

succeeding financial 
years (Rs.) Name of the 

Fund 
Amount 
(Rs.) 

Date of 
transfer 

1 2019-20 NA - - - - - 

2 2020-21 NA - - - - - 

3 2021-22 NA - - - - - 

 
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): 
(1) 
Sl. 

No . 

(2) 
Project ID 

(3) 
Name of the 

Project 

(4) 
Financial 

Year  
in which the 
project was 
commenced 

(5) 
Project 

Duration 

(6) 
Total amount 
allocated for 
the project 

(in Rs.) 

(7) 
Amount spent 
on the project 

in the reporting 
Financial Year  

(Rs.) 

(8) 
Cumulative 

amount spent 
at the end of 

reporting 
Financial Year  

(Rs.) 

(9) 
Status of the 

project - 
Completed / 

Ongoing 

NIL 
 
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR 
spent in the financial year 
(Asset-wise details) : Not Applicable 
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc. 
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset). 
 
11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5). : Not 
Applicable 

For Nova Iron and Steel Limited 
 
 

  (H.C.Verma)                        
Chairman                    

DIN 00007681 
Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 14/08/2023 
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ANNEXURE 9 
 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
 
1.Company’s Philosophy  

The Company is committed to good Corporate Governance practices. Your Directors endeavour to adhere to 
the Standards set out by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI). Your Company is, therefore, 
complying in all material respects the mandatory requirements as explained hereunder. 

 
2.Board of Directors  
a) Composition  

In compliance of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, Board consists of four Directors, comprising one 
Executive Director, one Non Executive Non Independent Director and two Independent Directors including 
one woman independent Director. Chairman of the Company is Non-Executive Director.  

 
b),c),d) Meetings and attendance records of each Director  

During the year eight meetings of Board of Directors were held on 23/05/2022, 16/06/2022, 18/07/2022, 
14/08/2022, 20/09/2022, 03/11/2022, 14/11/2022 and 07/02/2023 and a separate Meeting of the Independent 
Directors was held on 07/02/2023. The intervening period between the two Board Meetings was well within 
the maximum prescribed period.  

 
Attendance record of Directors at Board/ Committee/ General Meetings and details of directorship/ committee 
membership/Chairmanship during the year ended 31st March 2023 are given below: - 
 

Sr. No. Name of Director Category
 

Attendance Particulars 
No. of Other Directorship and Committee Member/ 
Chairmanship 

Remarks 

  
 

No. of Board 
Meetings held 

No. of Board 
Meetings 
attended 

Atten- 
dance at last 
AGM 

Other 
Direct -  
orships 

Committee 
Members(**) 

Committee 
Chairmanships (**) 

 

1. 
Mr. Hardev Chand 
Verma 

Director 
8 5 No 0 0 0  

2. 
Mr. Dinesh Kumar 
Yadav 

Whole Time 
Director 

8 2 No 0 3 0  

3. 
Mrs. Sumiran 
Aggarwal 

Independent 
9 7 Yes 1 3 1  

4. 
Mr. Suraj Prakash 
Choudhary 

Independent 
9 8 Yes 1 3 2  

 
(**) Committee here means Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee.  
 
e) Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se: 
 
The Non-Executive Directors had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company in their personal 
capacity during the year under review.  
 
f) Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive directors : nil 
 
g) Familiarisation  Programme for Independent Directors  
All Independent Directors are apprised/familiarized about the company, its business, industry etc and roles, rights, 
responsibilities of independent Directors, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business model of the 
company, etc. from time to time. Detailed agenda is provided to all the Directors to take informed decisions and 
perform its functions and fulfill its role effectively. The details of such familiarisationProgrammes are disclosed at 
weblink http://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/Familiarisation%20Programme%20for%20Independisent%20Director.pdf . 
 
Committees of Board of Directors  
  
3. Audit Committee: 
 
(a) Brief description of terms of reference  
 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee as defined under the relevant provisions of Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are as under: 
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1. Oversight of the company‟s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure 

that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.  
2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of 

the statutory auditor and the fixation audit fees.  
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.  
4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial‟ statements before submission to the Board for approval, 

with particular reference to:  
a. Matters required to be included in the Directors‟ Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board‟s report in 

terms of clause (5) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management. 
d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings .  
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.  
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions.  
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.  
5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.  
6. Review and monitor the Auditor‟s independence, and effectiveness of audit process; 
7. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties. 
8. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments. 
9. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary.  
10. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.  
11. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal 

control systems.  
12. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, 

staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of 
internal audit.  

13. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon.  
14. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control system of a material nature and reporting the matter 
to the board.  

15. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.  

16. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.  

17. Reviewing the functioning of Whistle Blower mechanism in the Company. 
18. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.  
19. Considering such other matters the Board may specify. 
20. Reviewing other areas that may be brought under the purview of role of Audit Committee as specified in SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, as and when amended. 
 
(b) Composition, nam e of members and chairperson  

The Company has an Audit Committee and at present the composition of the Committee consists 3 members 
namely Mr. Suraj Prakash Choudhary, Independent Director, Mr. Dinesh Kumar Yadav, Director and Mrs. 
Sumiran Aggarwal, Independent Director as its members. Mr. Suraj Prakash Choudhary is Chairman of the 
Committee and he is independent Director. He is a practicing Company Secretary.  
 

(c) Meeting and attendance during the year  
The committee met seven times during the year i.e. on 23/05/2022, 18/07/2022, 14/08/2022, 20/09/2022, 
03/11/2022, 14/11/2022 and 07/02/2023 and attendance is as under. 

 
Name Designation Meeting Attended (No. of 

Meeting(s) held: 7) 
Mr. Suraj Prakash Choudhary Chairman 7 
Mrs. Sumiran Aggarwal  Member 6 
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Yadav  Member 1 

 
Representative(s) of the Statutory Auditors normally attends meetings of Audit Committee.  
 
4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE  
 
(a) Brief description of terms of reference  
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The terms of reference decided by the Board for the functioning of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, interalia, to determine Company‟s remuneration policy, parameters for appointment of directors, 
key managerial personnel and determine remuneration structure performance based as well as the 
nomination and also covers such functions and scope as prescribed under section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with allied Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.  

 
(b) Composition, name of members and chairperson   
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists Mr. Suraj Prakash Choudhary, Independent 
Directors, Mr. Dinesh Kumar Yadav, Director and Mrs. Sumiran Aggarwal, independent directors as 
members of the Committee. Mr. Suraj Prakash Choudhary is the Chairman of the Committee.  

 
(c) Meeting and attendance during the year  

The committee has met one time during the year. 
 
(d) Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors  

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has laid out the evaluation criteria for 
performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and all the independent directors, in adherence to SEBI 
(LODR), Regulations 2015. The performance evaluation criteria includes attendance of directors, active 
participation in discussion, discussion of the item at length with import latest knowledge of industry and 
business etc.  

 
5. Remuneration of Directors: 
 
(a) All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors  
 

The Non-Executive Directors had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company in their 
personal capacity during the year under review.  

 
(b) Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors  
 

Company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
other Employees; regulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board. The policy 
provides the criteria and qualification for appointment of Directors, KMP, remuneration to them. The Policy 
is also available on the website of the Company www.novaironsteel.com in the investor section. (Also refer 
Annexure – 3 of Board�s Report). 

 
The remuneration to the Whole-time Director(s) is paid on the scale determined by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee within the limits approved by the Shareholders at the General Meeting. The Non-
Executive, Independent Directors, are entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board, its 
Committees. 

 
(c) Disclosure with respect to remuneration:  
 

SN Name of Director Element of 
Remuneration 
Package 

Details of 
fixed 
component 

Sitting fee 
Paid/Payable 

Service Contract , 
Notice period , 
severance fee  

Stock 
option 
details , 
if any  

No of shares 
held by non 
-executive 
directors  

1 *Mr. H.C. Verma 
(Director) 

*25,00,000 Fixed  - *Contract for 
three years. 
Notice period 
three months. 
Salary in lieu of 
notice short of 
agreed period.  

NIL  N.A. 

3 Mr. Dinesh Kumar 
Yadav 
(Whole Time 
Director)  

1980000 Fixed - Contract for five 
years. Notice 
period five 
months. Salary in 
lieu of notice 
short of agreed 
period. 

- - 

5 Mrs. Sumiran 
Aggarwal 
(Woman 

- - 33770 
(including 

conveyance) 

- - - 
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Independent 
Director) 

6 Mr. Suraj Prakash 
Choudhary 
(Independent 
Director) 

- - 176200 
(including 

conveyance) 

- - - 

 
*Mr. H.C. Verma has resigned from the position of Whole Time Director on 19/01/2023 and he is continuing as Non -
Executive Director. 
 
6. STAKEHOLDER RELA TIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 
(a) Name of non -executive director heading the committee:  
 

Committee consists Mrs. Sumiran Aggarwal, Independent Director, Mr. Dinesh Kumar Yadav, Director and 
Mr. Suraj Prakash Choudhary, Independent Director as members of the committee. Mrs. Sumiran Aggarwal, 
is Chairman of the Committee. During the year under review four Meetings of Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee were held on 15.04.2022, 15.07.2022, 15.10.2022 and 16.01.2023. 

 
(b) Name and designation of compliance officer:  

  

Mr. Dheeraj Kumar, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer. 
 
(c),(d),(e) Number of shareholders compla ints received so far, Number not solved to the satisfaction of 

shareholder and Number of pending complaints:  
 

During the year 6 Nos. of complaints were received from various shareholders and all of them have been 
replied/resolved to the satisfaction of the complainants. As on date there is no complaint pending. 

 
SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE  
Mrs. Sumiran Aggarwal, Independent Director and Mr. Suraj Prakash Chaudhary are the Members of the Committee. 
During the year under review Meetings of Share Transfer Committee were held every transaction/fortnight. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE  
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee constituted pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and CSR Committee recommend to the Board, a 
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in 
Schedule VII to the Act and  amount of expenditure to be incurred on such activities/programs  and to monitor the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy from time to time. Mr. Suraj Prakash Choudhary, Independent Director, Mr. 
H. C. Verma, Whole Time Director  and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Yadav, Director are the Members of the Committee. Mr. 
Suraj Prakash Choudharyis the Chairman of the Committee.  
 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company is available on the weblink of the Company 
http://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/CSR%20Policy.pdf.  
 
7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

S.

 

No.

 

Last three AGM

 

2019-20

 

2020-21

 

2021-22

 

(a)

 

Location and time, 
where last three annual 
general meetings held;

 
18/12/2020

 

adjourned 25/12/2020

 

at 
11:30 am through VC/OAVM

 
31/12/2021 adjourned 
07/01/2022 at 11:30 am 
through VC/OAVM

 
30/11/2022 at 11.30am 
through VC/OAVM

 

(b)

 

Whether any special 
resolution passed in the 
previous three annual 
general meeting

 

(i) Re-appointment of Mrs. Sumiran 
Aggarwal (DIN 07147212) as an 
Independent Director for second 
term of five years 

 

(ii) Re-appointment of Sh. Hardev 
Chand Verma

 
(DIN 00007681) as 

Whole Time Director of the 
Company

 

(iii) Further Issue of Securities
 

(i) Appointment of and 
Remuneration to be paid to 
Sh. Dinesh Kumar Yadav 
(DIN 07051856) as 
Director (Technical) of the 
Company

 

NIL

 

(c) Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot-details of voting 
pattern 

No  

(d) Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise NA  

(e) Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot  NA  

(f) Procedure for postal ballot NA  
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Extraordinary General Meetings: 
 
The detail of Extraordinary General Meetings held during the preceding three years and special resolutions passed as 
under: 
Date and Time Location Special Resolution passed 
05th Day of May 2022 AT 11:30 Through Video Conferencing 

(“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) 

Nil 

 
8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:  
 
(a) Quarterly Results:  

Prior intimation of Board Meeting where to consider and approve Unaudited/Audited Financial Results of the 
Company is given to the Stock Exchanges and also disseminated on the website of the Company at 
www.novaironsteel.com 

 
(b) Newspapers wherein results normally published:  

The Company normally publishes quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results in Financial Express, 
English daily, in Jansatta, a Hindi daily and Samvet Shikhar, regional daily widely circulated. 

 
(c) Any website, where displayed:  
 Company’s website www.novaironsteel.com 
 
(d) Official news release:  

Official new releases including news on financial results of the company are sent to the Stock Exchange and the 
same are simultaneously hosted on the website of the Company. 

 
(e) Presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts:  

All price sensitive information is promptly intimated to the Stock Exchanges before releasing to the Media, 
other stakeholders and uploading on Company website.  

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:
 

 
a)   Annual General Meeting for the year ended 31st  

March 2023 : 23rd September, 2023 at 1:00 PM through VC/OAVM  

b) Financial year 
Financial reporting for the quarter ending  

: 1st April to 31st March 

Financial results for the period Ended : Dates 

30th June 2022 : August 2022 
30th September 2022 : November 2022 

31st December 2022 : February 2023 
31st March 2023 : May 2023 

c) Dividend payment date 
 

: 
No dividend is recommended for the financial year ended 
31st  March 2023 

Dates of Book Closure : 17/09/2023 to 23/09/2023 

d) The name and address of each stock exchange(s) 
at which the listed entity’s securities are listed and 
a confirmation about payment of annual listing fee 
to each of stock exchange(s) 

: 
Bombay Stock Exchange 
Payment of Annual Listing fee upto 2023-24 has been 
paid 

e) Stock Code 
ISIN 

: 
513566 
INE608C01026 

f) Market Price date- high, low during each month in 
last financial year 

: 
Month  

High Low Volume 

(Rs. Per share)  (Rs. Per share)  (No. of  Shares)  

Apr-22 9.99 7.86 9001 

May-22 10.48 8.74 2444 

Jun-22 9.17 7.5 673 

Jul-22 

Trading was suspended during this period 

Aug-22 

Sep-22 

Oct-22 

Nov-22 

Dec-22 

Jan-23 

Feb-23 

Mar-23 
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g) Performance in comparison to broad-
bases BSE sensex; 
(Trading was suspended from July22 to March23) 

:  

 
h) In case the securities are suspended from 

trading, the director report shall explain the 
reason thereof;

 

:  

i) Registrar and share transfer agents : M/s Skyline Financial Services Private Limited  
D-153A, 1st  Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, New Delhi -
110020. 
Ph : 011-40450193 to 97  
Fax : 011-30857562 

j) Investor grievance and 
share transfer system

 : 
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BSE NOVA

Trading of securities of the Company was suspended by Bombay 
Stock Exchange Limited due to penal provision of non-compliance 
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. However, company has 
complied with said regulations and file an application on 26/05/2022 
for Revocation of Suspension of Trading of Securities and for waive 
off penalty with Bombay Stock Exchange. In response to said 
application Bombay Stock Exchange has waived off the maximum 
penalty and revoked the suspension of trading w.e.f. 03/04/2023.

The Company has a Board-level Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
to examine and redress investors’ complaints. The status on complaints 
and share transfers are reported to the entire Board.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, 
securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialised 
form with effect from April 01, 2019 except in case of requests received 
for transmission or transposition and relodged transfer of securities. 
Further, SEBI vide its circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/RTAMB/CIR/P/ 
2020/236 dated December 02, 2020 had fixed March 31, 2021 as the cut-
off date for re-lodgement of transfer deeds and the shares that are re-
lodged for transfer shall be issued only in demat mode.

SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ 
CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022, mandated all listed companies to 
issue securities in dematerialized form only, while processing the 
service request of issue of duplicate securities certificate, claim from 
Unclaimed Suspense Account, renewal/ exchange of securities 
certificate, endorsement, sub-division/ splitting of securities certificate, 
consolidation of securities certificates/folios, transmission and 
transposition.

In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares 
and for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in 
physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to 
dematerialised form.

Also, share transactions in electronic form can be effected in a much 
simpler and faster manner. After a confirmation of a sale /purchase 
transaction from the broker, shareholders should approach the 
Depository Participant (‘DP’) with a request to debit or credit the 
account for the transaction. The DP will immediately arrange to 
complete the transaction by updating the account.

Shareholders should communicate with Skyline Financial Services 
Private Limited the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agent (‘RTA’) 
quoting their folio number or Depository Participant ID (‘DP ID’) and 
Client ID number, for any queries to their securities.
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k) Distribution of shareholding : 
Range  

No. of 
Shareholders  

No.  of 
Shares  

%age  

1-500 154901 6433607 17.80 
501-1000 453 321275 0.89 
1001-2000 236 327803 0.91 
2001-3000 93 221868 0.61 
3001-4000 30 104116 0.29 
4001-5000 24 115168 0.32 
5001-10000 37 256853 0.71 
10001 & above 52 28358798 78.47 
Total  155826 36139488 100.00 

 

l) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity : Demat facility for demat of shares is available of both the National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited (CDSL).  
As at 31st March, 2023, 29981160 Equity shares out of 36139488 
Equity Shares of the Company, forming 82.96% of the Company‟s 
paid up capital are held in the dematerialized form. The Company‟s 
shares are liquid and actively traded on the BSE. 

m) Outstanding global depository receipts or 
American depository receipts or warrants or 
any convertible instruments, conversion date 
and likely impact on equity 

: Nil 

n) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange 
risk and hedging activities 

: Nil 

o) Plant locations : Village Dagori, Tehsil Belha, Distt Bilaspur, Chhattisgarh -495224   
 

p) Address for correspondence : Village Dagori, Tehsil Belha, Distt Bilaspur, Chhattisgarh -495224   
 

 
(d) Detail of compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory requirements: 

The Company has fully complied with the mandatory requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
Adoption of Non-Mandatory requirements under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are reviewed by the 
Board from time to time. 

a) Related party transactions  
The particulars of transactions between the company and its related parties as per the Indian Accounting 
Standard “Related Party Disclosures” are disclosed in Notes to Financial Statements. However these 
transactions are not likely to have any conflict with the Company‟s interest. All related party transactions are 
on arms‟ length price, and are in the ordinary course of business. The company has adopted the Related 
Party Transaction policy which is also available on the website of the Company at 
https://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20policy.pdf 

 
b) Compliances  

The Company has complied with the material requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other 
Statutory Authorities on matters related to capital markets, Further during the year trading of securities of the 
Company was suspended by Bombay Stock Exchange Limited due to penal provision of non-compliance of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. However, company has complied with said regulations and file an 
application on 26/05/2022 for Revocation of Suspension of Trading of Securities and for waive off penalty 
with Bombay Stock Exchange. In response to said application Bombay Stock Exchange has waived off the 
maximum penalty and revoked the suspension of trading w.e.f. 03/04/2023.    
 

c) Vigil Mechanism, Whistle Blower Policy and affirmation that no personnel has been denied access to 
the Audit Committee.  
Refer to details of establishment of Vigil/Whistle Blower Policy of Board‟s Report. The Policy empower 
any person associated with the organisation to file a grievance if he/ she notices any irregularity. No person 
has been denied access to the Audit Committee for any grievance. 

 
10. OTHER DISCLOSURES:  
 



31st ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

32

 
(f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transaction:  
 weblink:http://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20policy.pdf 
 
(g) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities:  

Not Applicable 
 
 

Auditor Certification on Corporate Governance  
The Company has obtained a Certificate as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 regarding compliance of 
conditions of Corporate Governance and a certificate from Company Secretary in Practice regarding Non – 
Disqualification of Directors are enclosed as Annexure at 10  and 12 . 
 
Whole Time Director and CFO Certification  
As required under SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, the Certificate of Whole Time Director/ Chief Financial Officer 
of the Company regarding Financial Statements for the year ended 31/03/2023 is at Annexure -11. 
 
Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account: NIL 
 
Company’s Policy on Prohibition of Insider Trading 
The Company has formulated a Policy for Prohibition of Insider Trading to deter the insider trading in the securities 
of the Company based on the unpublished price sensitive information. The policy envisages procedures to be 
followed and disclosures to be made while dealing in the securities of the Company. The company has also 
implemented the Structured Digital Database software. The full text of the policy is available on the weblink 
http://www.novaironsteel.com/pdfs/Insider%20Trading%20Policy.pdf. 
 
Other Useful Information for Shareholders  
Updation of E-mails for receiving notice/documents in e-mode: 
 

 
(e) Web link where policy for determining material subsidiaries is disclosed:  

Company does not have a Material Subsidiary as defined under Regulation 16(1)(c) of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. Company shall formulate a policy to determine material subsidiary as and when 
considered appropriate in the future. 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has through its circular issued in 2011, allowed service of documents by 
companies including Notice calling General Meeting(s), Annual Report etc., to their shareholders through electronic 
mode. 
 
In accordance of the same, company has been sending notice calling General Meetings, Annual Report and other 
documents in electronic mode to the shareholders on their email addresses who has registered their email address 
with the Company/RTA and they may inform the company/RTA in case the shareholders wish to receive the above 
documents in physical form. 
 
The shareholders who have not registered their email addresses with the Company are requested to kindly register 
their e-mail addresses with the Company. 
 
Dematerilisation of Shares 
Members are advised to consider dematerialization of their shareholding so as to avoid inconvenience involved in the 
physical shares such as mutilation, possibility of loss/misplacement, delay in transit etc. ISIN No. for 
dematerialisation of Equity Shares is INE608C01026 and Security Symbol in BSE is NOVIS. 
 
As per SEBI Circular SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated 08th June 2018, as amended to date, shareholders are 
advised to dematerialized their physical securities, since requests for transfer (except transmission or transposition) 
only be processed after dematerialized of physical securities. 
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Update your Correspondence Address/Bank Mandate/Email Id  
To ensure all communication benefits received promptly, all shareholders holding shares in physical, demat form are 
requested to notify to the Company or their respective DPs, change in their address/bank details/email id instantly by 
written request under the signatures of sole/first joint holder.  
 
Quote Folio No./DP ID No. 
Shareholders/Beneficial Owners are requested to quote their Folio Nos./DP ID Nos., as the case may be, in all 
correspondence with the Company and their E-mail IDs, Contact/Fax numbers for prompt reply to their 
correspondence. 
 

 

 

 
  

 

 
  (H.C.Verma)                        

Chairman                    
DIN 00007681 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 14/08/2023 
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ANNEXURE 10
 

 
 CERTIFICATE

 (Under Schedule V(E) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015
 

 
To  
The Members of  
Nova Iron & Steel Limited  
 
We have examined the relevant record of Nova Iron & Steel Limited for the purpose of certifying the compliance of 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the year ended 31st March 
2023. 
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination 
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance.  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the year 
ended 31st March, 2023. 
  

 
 

For KV Bindra & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

                                                                                              Membership No. 10074 
                                                                                                                          C.P No.12962 

Peer Reviewer No. 2522/2022 
UDIN F010074E000600774 

Place: Mohali 
Dated: 13.07.2023 
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ANNEXURE 11

 CERTIFICATION OF WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR AND CFO  
(Under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015  

 
 

To  
The Board of Directors  
Nova Iron & Steel Limited  
 
We hereby Certify that 

 
We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year 202 2-23 and to the best 
of our knowledge and belief: 

•  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 

•  These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company‟s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations; 

 
b.  to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 

2022-23 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company‟s code of conduct; 
 
c.  We accept responsibility for establi shing and maintaining internal controls and have evaluated the 

effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and have disclosed to the auditors and the 
Audit Committee, deficiencies, if any, in the design or operation of the internal control , of which We 
are aware of and steps have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
d.  We  have also indicated to the Auditors and  the Audit Committee - 

• There has not been any Significant changes in internal control over the financial repo rting during 
the year  

• There has not been any Significant changes in accounting policies during the year except in respect 
of depreciation and the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

• Instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of 
the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company‟s internal control system 
over the financial reporting. 

 
 
 
 

Dinesh Kumar Yadav 
    Whole Time Director 

DIN 07051856 
 
 Place: New Delhi

 Dated: 14/08/2023
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FOR KV BINDRA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES                                                                                                                

Karan Vir Bindra
Proprietor 

                                                                                                                              M. NO. FCS 10074
                                                                                                                             CP No. 12962

UDIN – F010074E000600862
                                                                            PEER REVIEW NUMBER- 2522

PLACE: MOHALI
DATE: 13.07.2023

PLACE: MOHALI
DATE: 13.07.2023

ANNEXURE 12

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of
Nova Iron and Steel Limited
Village Dagori, Tehsil Belha, Distt. Bilaspur
Chhattisgarh

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
Nova Iron and Steel Limited having CIN: L02710CT1989PLC010052 and having registered office at Village 
Dagori, Tehsil Belha, Distt. Bilaspur, Chhattisgarh 495224 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced 
before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with 
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal ) as considered necessary and explanations www.mca.gov.in
furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment

1. Hardev Chand Verma 00007681 05/08/2013

2. Sumiran Aggarwal 07147212 02/04/2015

3. Dinesh Kumar Yadav 07051856 14/08/2021

4. Suraj Prakash Choudhary 09241286 14/08/2021

http://www.mca.gov.in/
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

 
 

 
This report is an integral part of the Board‟ Report. The objective of this report is to convey the 
Management's perspective on the external environment and steel industry, as well as strategy, operating 
and financial performance, material developments in human resources and industrial relations, risks and 
opportunities, and internal control systems and their adequacy in the Company during the Financial Year 
2022-23 
 
Industry Structure and Development 

Global GDP growth rate in 2022 was 3.4% under the challenging geo-political environment caused in the 
wake of the Russia-Ukraine war. Indian GDP growth rate in FY 2022-23 was 7.2% which was better than 
what was estimated earlier. Despite the challenging external environment, India will remain the fastest 
growing major economy. India remains in a very optimistic position in the global steel demand. After 
growth of 8.2% in 2022, demand is expected to grow at 7.3% in 2023 backed by consumption-led levers. 
Having managed inflation well, the Indian economy is on a healthy growth trajectory, with a rising share 
of investment in GDP, appropriate budget allocations and expenditure by the Government in the 
infrastructure segment. 
 
Growth rate in 2023 in USA is expected to be 1.6%, while the Eurozone is expected to remain strained at 
0.8%. The energy shock, a result of the war in Ukraine, continues to impact the economic activity in 
Europe. China‟s economy is set to rebound to 5.2% as mobility and industrial activities pick up after lifting 
of pandemic restrictions; long-term headwinds to growth include a shrinking population and slowing 
productivity growth. The factors that drove inflation in 2022 are already reversing. These include increase 
in commodity prices, expansive fiscal and monetary policy, and supply chain disruptions. Global inflation 
is expected to fall from 8.7% in 2022 to 7% in 2023 on the back of lower commodity prices. Inflation has 
already peaked in the US and Europe in early 2023. It is also declining in other major economies including 
Japan, China and India. The year witnessed very high volatility in raw material, especially coking coal on 
account of the on-going geopolitical concerns and supply chain bottlenecks impacting steel price across 
geographies. The recovery momentum of global economy after the pandemic has been affected by 
persisting inflation, US monetary tightening, China‟s economic deceleration and continued supply 
disruptions due to Russia-Ukraine war. High energy prices, rising interest rates, and falling confidence 
have limited recovery of the steel demand after a dip in 2022. 
 
Over previous year the Company has entered operation and Management Agreement with M/s R.K. 
Sponge Iron Pvt. Ltd. The performance of said Agreement was satisfactory. The tenure of said operation 
and management agreement ended on 30/06/2023 and now company is controlling the operation and 
management. The Company is taking all necessary measures in terms of mitigating the impact of the 
challenges being faced in the business. It is focused on controlling the fixed costs, maintaining liquidity 
and closely monitoring the supply chain to ensure that the manufacturing facilities operate smoothly. 
 
Opportunity and Threat  
 
India remains in a very optimistic position in the global steel demand. After growth of 8.2% in 2022, 
demand is expected to grow at 7.3% in 2023 backed by consumption-led levers. Having managed inflation 
well, the Indian economy is on a healthy growth trajectory, with a rising share of investment in GDP, 
appropriate budget allocations and expenditure by the Government in the infrastructure segment. The 
Metals and Mining sector in India is expected to witness a major reform in the next few years, owing to 
reforms such as Make-in-India Scheme (Atmanirbhar Bharat) Campaign. In the past 10–12 years, India's 
steel sector has expanded significantly. Production has increased by 75% since 2008, while domestic steel 
demand has increased by almost 80%. The capacity for producing steel has grown concurrently, and the 
rise has been largely organic. In FY23, the production of crude steel and finished steel stood at 125.32 MT 
and 121.29 MT respectively.  
 
The annual production of steel is anticipated to exceed 300 million tonnes by 2030-31. By 2030-31, crude 
steel production is projected to reach 255 million tonnes at 85% capacity utilisation achieving 230 million 
tonnes of finished steel production, assuming a 10% yield loss or a 90% conversion ratio for the 
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conversion of raw steel to finished steel. With net exports of 24 million tonnes, consumption is expected to 
reach 206 million tonnes by the years 2030–1931. As a result, it is anticipated that per-person steel 
consumption will grow to 160 kg. “Source of information India Brand Equity Foundation (IBEF) ” 
 
The general economic slowdown has a significant impact on major consumers like the automotive, 
construction, appliance, and industrial industries. China exports a lot of steel at competitive costs. Industry 
by nature is capital intensive and requires high capital investment. There has been significant increase in 
levies, duties and regulatory costs in the recent years. The key risks going forward include high inflation, 
high energy prices, prolonged Russia-Ukraine war, tapering of liquidity by Central Banks and likely 
increase in interest rates. Rising cost of input coupled with scarcity in supply. Volatility in prices of crude 
oil in international market. Volatility in foreign exchange currency. Weak rupee against USD.  
 Segment wise performance

 
The Company is engaged in the manufacturing/trading of Iron & Steel, business which is considered the 
only business segments. The turnover of the Company is Rs. 698.08 crore during the year.  
 
Outlook

 
Fiscal-2023 marked the first full year after the end of Covid pandemic. Business activities remained 
smooth throughout the year, even though some trading sectors& manufacturing units showed suppressed 
demand as well as poor capacity utilization. Government‟s robust investment through its flagship Scheme 
of Jal Jeevan Mission both, for Rural and Urban areas.  
The Company is taking all necessary measures in terms of mitigating the impact of the challenges being 
faced in the business. Over previous year the Company has entered operation and Management Agreement 
with M/s R.K. Sponge Iron Pvt. Ltd. The performance of said Agreement was satisfactory. The tenure of 
said operation and management agreement ended on 30/06/2023 and now company is controlling the 
operation and management. It is focused on controlling the fixed costs, maintaining liquidity and closely 
monitoring the supply chain to ensure that the manufacturing facilities operate smoothly. In addition, 
efforts would continue for cost control, and efficient utilization of all our resources. 
 
Company is in the process of increasing the production capacity of Billet from the existing capacity of 
250000 to 360000 Ton / Annum(Approx) and is under process. We have started project for 1.0 MTPA 
Coal Washery with Coal Handling System towards self-dependence to meet our requirement. Company is 
also in process to start soon for 2 Kilns of 100 TPD each with WHRB based CPP in the year 2023-24 only. 
Company is in the process of bringing the Railway siding inside the plant premises from Railway Station, 
Dagori (3.5kms apprx form plant), the process for land acquisition / necessary approvals is going on.   
For stabilization of plant and further expansion, we are in the process of taking 220 KV connectivity from 
Chhattisgarh State Power Transmission Company Ltd. (CSPTCL) to our plant and is under progress.   
 
Others:

 
For Risk and Concern, Inter Control System and their Adequacy, Financial Performance with respect to 
operation performance, Material Development in Human Resources/Industrial Relations front, including 
number of people employed please refer to Board Report. 
 
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT  

The above Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objectives, projections, 
estimates and expectations may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable 
securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. 
Important factors that could make a difference to the Company's operations include external economic 
conditions affecting demand/supply influencing price conditions in the market in which the Company 
operates, changes in Government regulations, tax laws, and other incidental factors.  
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NOTICE 
 

Notice is hereby given that 31st Annual General Meeting of Nova Iron and Steel Limited will be held on 
Saturday, the 23rd day of September 2023 at 01:00 P.M. through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio 
Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1.    To receive, consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st 

March 2023 i.e. Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023 and the Statement of Profit & Loss and 
Cash Flow Statement for the year as on that date together with Auditors‟ Report and Board‟s Report 
thereon. 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Hardev Chand Verma, (DIN 00007681), who retires by rotation 

and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment. 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS  
 
3. To consider appointment of Mrs. Palak Garg  (DIN: 10264720) as an Independent Director and 

in this regard to consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following 
Resolution as Special resolution: 

 
“Resolved that Mrs. Palak Garg (DIN 10264720), who was appointed as an Additional Director on the 
Board of Directors of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 („the Act‟) 
and whose term of office expires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting be and is hereby appointed, 
in accordance with Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions 
of the Act and the corresponding Rules framed thereunder, as an Independent Director to hold office 
for a term of 5 (Five) years and shall not be liable for retirement by rotation.” 

 
4. To ratify and approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 

March 31, 2024 and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), consent of the Company be and 
is hereby given for payment of Remuneration of Rs. 25000/- to M/s J. K. Kabra & Company, New 
Delhi, Cost Auditors (Firm Registration No. 2890) appointed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, to conduct cost audit of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2024.” 

 
5. 

 

To approve raising of funds through secured/unsecured loan with an option to convertible into 
securities i.e. Equity Shares/Convertible, Non-Convertible Preference Shares and in this regard 
to consider and if thought fit, to pass either with or without modification(s), the following  
resolution, as a Special Resolution: 

“Resolved that pursuant to Section 62(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and in accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company, the Securities and Exchange Board of India(Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended and the applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, notifications guidelines issued by various authorities including but not limited to the 
Government of India, SEBI, Reserve Bank of India(“RBI”) and other competent authorities and 
subject to all such approval(s), consent(s), permission(s), sanction(s), if any, of appropriate statutory, 
governmental and other authorities and departments in this regard and subject to such condition(s) 
and modification(s) as may be prescribed or imposed, while granting such approval(s), consent(s), 
permission(s) or sanction(s), the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 
to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall be 
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deemed to include any committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board) to raise funds 
through secured/unsecured loan with an option to convertible into securities i.e. equity 
shares/convertible, non-convertible preference shares from Promoter and Promoter Group/Financial 
Institutions/Banks/any Bodies Corporate (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Lenders”) from 
time to time aggregating to a sum not exceeding Rs. 120,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Twenty 
Crores Only) on such terms and conditions as may be stipulated in the Loan agreement providing 
inter-alia the provision of such conversion as hereinbefore mentioned and subject to applicable laws. 

 
Resolved further that the loan as hereinbefore mentioned would be converted into securities i.e. 
equity shares/convertible, non-convertible preference shares of the Company in accordance with the 
following conditions:  

 
(i).  the lender (or their agents or trustees) shall give notice in writing to the Company 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Notice of Conversion”) of the exercise of their Conversion 
rights i.e. right to convert their loan into securities i.e. equity shares/convertible, non-
convertible preference shares of the Company; 

(ii).  the conversion right reserved as aforesaid may be exercised by the Lenders in the event of 
the default/inability of the Company to repay, as stipulated in the Loan Agreement; 

(iii).  on receipt of the Notice of Conversion, the Company shall, subject to the provisions of the 
Loan Agreement, allot and issue the requisite number of fully paid-up equity 
shares/convertible, non-convertible preference shares to the Lenders after due compliance 
of all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws; 

(iv).  the Lender/s may accept the same in satisfaction of the part of the loans so converted and 
the loan shall stand correspondingly reduced; 

(v).  the equity shares so allotted and issued to the Lender/s shall carry, from the date of 
conversion, the right to receive proportionately the dividends and other distributions 
declared or to be declared in respect of the equity capital of the Company. Save as 
aforesaid, the said shares shall rank pari-passu with the existing equity shares of the 
Company in all respects; 

(vi).  the loans shall be converted into equity shares at a price will be decided at the time of 
conversion, subject to the compliance of applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. 

 
Resolved further that the Board be and is hereby authorized to finalise the terms and conditions for 
raising the loan, from time to time, with an option to convert them into securities i.e. equity 
shares/convertible, non-convertible preference shares of the Company at any time till the loan is 
repaid, on the terms specified in the Loan Agreement, including upon happening of an event of 
default by the Company in terms of the Loan Agreement. 

 
Resolved further that the Board be and is hereby authorized to issue, offer and allot from time to 
time to the Lenders such number of equity shares/convertible, non-convertible preference shares 
for conversion of the outstanding portion of the loans as may be desired by the Lenders as well as 
to dematerialize the shares of the Company. 

 
Resolved further that the Board be and is hereby authorized to accept such modifications and to 
accept such terms and conditions as may be imposed or required by the Lender/s arising from or 
incidental to the aforesaid terms providing for such option. 

 
Resolved further that for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board, be and is hereby 
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in its absolute discretion deem 
necessary, proper or desirable without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the 
members or otherwise in this regard and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their 
approval expressly by the authority of this resolution. 
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Resolved further that Directors and/or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby 
jointly or severally authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred by this 
resolution on it, to any committee of Directors or any person or persons, as it may in its absolute 
discretion deem fit in order to give effect to this resolution.” 

  
 

 
 

By order of the Board 
For Nova Iron and Steel Limited 

 
Place:  New Delhi 
Dated: 14/08/2023         Dheeraj Kumar 

         Company Secretary 
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NOTES FOR MEMBERS ATTENTION: 
 
1. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND 

VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON 
HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE 
THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH VC/OAVM 
FACILITY, PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. 
ACCORDINGLY, THE FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS 
WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THE E-AGM AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM AND 
ATTENDANCE SLIP ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE. 
 

2. Institutional/Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a 
scanned copy (Pdf/jpg format) of its board or governing body's resolution/authorisation, etc., 
authorising their representative to attend the e-AGM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. 
The said resolution/authorisation shall be sent to the scrutinizer by email through its registered email 
address to cskaranvirbindra@gmail.com with a copy marked to rai_nisl2007@gmail.com 
 

3. M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. is Registrar & Share Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company. 
Any correspondence relating to shares can be made to the company‟s registrar at their following 
address:  
M/s Skyline Financial Services Private Limited, D-153A,  
1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,  
Phase-I, New Delhi-110020,  
Ph. Nos. 011-40450193 to 97,  
Email: rta.nova.rg@gmail.com, info@skyline.com   
Website: www.skylinerta.com   
Members are requested to notify the change of Address if any. 

 
4. In view of the continuing restrictions on the movement of people at several places in the country, due 

to outbreak of COVID -19, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its General Circulars Nos. 
14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, 02/2021 dated 
January 13, 2021, 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, 2/2022 dated May 5, 2022 and 10/2022 dated 
December 28, 2022, respectively, (“the MCA Circulars”) read with the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (“SEBI”) Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022 (the SEBI 
Circular), the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) will be held without the physical presence of the 
Members at a common venue and Members can attend and participate in the AGM through 
VC/OAVM. 

 
5. In terms of sections 101 and 136 of the Act, read with the rules made thereunder, the listed companies 

may send the notice of AGM and the annual report, including financial statements, boards‟ report, etc. 
by electronic mode. Pursuant to the said provisions of the Act read with MCA Circulars, SEBI Circular 
dated 12th May 2020, Notice of 31st e-AGM along with the Annual Report for FY 2023 is being sent 
only through electronic mode to those members whose email addresses are registered with the 
Company/depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report for FY2023 will also be 
available on the Company‟s website at https://www.novaironsteel.com and website of the stock 
exchange i.e., BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. 

  
Members who have not registered their e-mail address with the Company are requested to submit their 
request with their valid e-mail address to RTA. Members holding shares in demat form are requested to 
register/update their e-mail address with their Depository Participant(s)  directly. Members of the 
Company, who have registered their email-address, are entitled to receive such communication in 
physical form upon request. 

 
6. Notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to those shareholders/beneficial owners whose name 

will appear in the register of the members/list of beneficiaries received from the depositories as on 
18/08/2023. 
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7. The deemed venue for 31st e-AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company at Chhattisgarh 
 

8. Since the meeting will be conducted through VC/OAVM facility, the route map is not annexed to this   
Notice. 
 

9. The facility of joining the e-AGM through VC/OAVM will be opened 15 minutes before and will be 
open upto 15 minutes after the scheduled start time of the e-AGM, i.e., from 12:45pm to 01:15pm and 
will be available for 1,000 members on a first come first -served basis. This rule would however not 
apply to participation of shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding, promoters, institutional 
investors, directors, key and senior managerial personnel, auditors, etc. 
 

10. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books shall remain closed from 17/09/2023 to 
23/09/2023 (both days inclusive). 
 

11. In case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as 
per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the e-AGM. 
 

12. Members seeking information about the accounts are requested to write at least 10 days before the date 
of the meeting to the Company so that it may be convenient to keep the information ready for the 
meeting. 
 

13. All the documents referred to accompanying Notice are open for inspection at the registered office of 
the  Company on all working days except Sunday and National Holiday between 11.00 AM to 1.00 PM 
upto the date of Annual General Meeting. 
 

14. For ease of conduct, members who would like to ask questions/express their views on the items of the 
businesses to be transacted at the meeting can send in their questions/comments in advance during the 
period starting from 20/09/2023 (10.00 A.M.) upto 21/09/2023 (5.00 P.M.) mentioning their name, 
demat account no. /Folio no., e-mail Id, mobile number, etc. The queries may be raised precisely and 
in brief to enable the Company to answer the same suitably depending on the availability of time at the 
meeting. 
 

15. Non Resident members are requested to inform immediately to RTA 
      (a) Change in residential status on relating to India for permanent settlement  
      (b) Particulars of bank account maintained in India with complete name of bank, branch address, 

account type, account number, if not furnished earlier. 
 
16. SEBI vide its notification dated 8 th June 2018 as amended on 30th November 2018, has stipulated that 

w.e.f. 1stApril 2019, the transfer of securities (except transmission or transposition of shares) shall not 
be processed, unless the securities are held in the dematerialised form. The Company has complied 
with the necessary requirements as applicable, including sending of letters to shareholders holding 
shares in physical form and requesting them to dematerialise their physical holdings. 
 

17. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom 
they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their 
PAN details to the Company/RTA. 
 

18. The detail of Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed, under the provisions of Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 36 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 at the Annual General Meeting are given below. 

 
1. Name Mrs. Palak Garg Mr. H.C. Verma 
2. DIN 10264720 00007681 
3. Date of Birth 26/11/1991 15.11.1952 
4. Expertise/ Experience in Area Accounts & Finance Steel Sector, Project 
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Implementation, Domestic and 
international Marketing 

5. Qualification Graduation Graduation 
6. Relationships between 

directors inter-se 
Not directly or 
indirectly related inter-
se 

Not directly or indirectly related 
inter-se 

7. names of listed entities in which the 
person also holds the directorship and 
the membership of Committees of the 
board along with listed entities from 
which the person has resigned in the 
past three years 

Nil Nil 

8. shareholding of non-executive 
directors in the listed entity, including 
shareholding as a beneficial owner 

Nil Nil 

9. skills and capabilities Accounts & Finance Steel Sector, Project 
Implementation, Domestic and 
international Marketing 

 
 

19.Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed in respect of special 
business. 
 
20.Voting through electronic means 
 
For Remote e-voting and e-voting  during AGM  
 

1) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA 
Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of 
remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this 
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting‟s agency. 
The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the 
date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 
 

2) The scrutinizer for voting is M/s K.V. Bindra & Associates, Company Secretaries, Kothi No.9577, 
Sector 125, Sunny Enclave, Kharar, Punjab, Email cskaranvirbindra@gmail.com, Contact No. 
9646497043. 

 
3) The voting period begins on 20/09/2023 at 10:00 AM and ends on 22/09/2023 at 05:00 PM. During 

this period shareholders‟ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 15/09/2023, may cast their vote electronically. The e-
voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

 
4) The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 

purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

5) A member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through remote e-voting or at the meeting. 
If a member casts votes by both modes then voting done through remote e-voting shall prevail. 
 

6) The member who has cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the 
meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.    
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7) Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend 
and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 
and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as body corporate 
can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 
8) In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the 

Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
www.novaironsteel.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges 
i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com respectively.  The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the 
website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the 
AGM) i.e.www.evotingindia.com. 

 
9) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its 
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders‟ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the 
participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.  

 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 

entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs 

and passwords by the shareholders.  

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been 

decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, 

through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account 

holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not 

only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in 

e-voting process. 

10) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-

Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 

Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 

Type of 

shareholders  

 Login Method  

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

Demat mode 

with CDSL 

(i) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 

existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 

page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / 

Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 

www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

(ii) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the 

information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will 

be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting. 



31st ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

112

(iii) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

(iv) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 

Account Number and PAN No. from e-Voting link available on 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending 

OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After 

successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the e-

voting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 

Service Providers. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL 

(i) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 

website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 

the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 

under “Login” which is available under „IDeAS‟ section. A new screen will open. 

You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-

Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 

on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed 

to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

(ii) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

 

(iii) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 

“Login” which is available under „Shareholder/Member‟ section. A new screen 

will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 

account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 

NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their 

Depository 

Participants 

(i) You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 

your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  

After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on 

e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 

successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-

Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
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Impor tant note:  Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 

ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues  

related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL  

Login type  Helpdesk details  

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43.  

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 

1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30  

 

Login method for e -Voting and joining vi rtual meeting for  shareholders other than individual 

shar eholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders  

 
(i) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

 
(ii) Click on Shareholders. 

 
(iii) Now Enter your User ID  

a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 
 

(iv) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
 

(v) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on 
an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

 
(vi) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 
 

 For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and 
Physical Form  

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 
•  Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 

Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 
digits of the sequence number in the PAN Field.  
 

•  In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable 
number of 0‟s before the number after the first two characters of the name in 
CAPITAL letters. E.g. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence 
number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN Field. 

Dividend 
Bank A/c 
Details 
OR Date of 
Birth 
(DOB) 

Enter your Dividend Bank A/c Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) 
as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 
• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please 

enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank A/c details field as 
mentioned in instruction (v). 
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(vii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
(viii) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 

However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach „Password Creation‟ menu wherein 
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note 
that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other 
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

 
(ix) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 

(x) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Nova Iron & Steel Limited on which you choose to vote. 
 

(xi) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you 
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
(xii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 
(xiii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box 

will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click 
on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xiv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 

(xv) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on 
the Voting page. 

 
(xvi) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then enter the User ID and the image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
 

Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians-Remote Voting 

 

(i) Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required 
to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporate. 
 

(ii) A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed 
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
 

(iii) After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 
 

(iv) The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 
accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  
 

(v) A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to 
verify the same. 
 

(vi) Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 
rai_nisl2007@yahoo.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL 
e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOES EMAIL ADDRESSES IS NOT 
REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR 
E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:  

 
(i) For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id . 

 
(ii) For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 

Participant (DP)  
 

(iii) For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through 
Depository. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE  
AS UNDER: 
 
(i) The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same as the 

instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 
 

(ii) The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be 
displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 

 
(iii) Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the 

CDSL e-Voting system. Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under 
shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will 
be available in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed. 

 
(iv) Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 

 
(v) Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 

any disturbance during the meeting. 
 

(vi) Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate 
any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
(vii) Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 

themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 2 days prior to meeting 
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company 
email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send 
their queries in advance 2 days prior to meeting  mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied 
to by the company suitably by email.  

 
(viii) Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 

their views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

(ix) Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have 
not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the EGM/AGM. 
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E -VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS 
UNDER:- 

 
(i) The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 

Remote e-voting. 
 

(ii) Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 

 
(iii) If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the 

same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility,  then the votes 
cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is 
available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

 
Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians 

 
(i) Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required 

to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporate” module. 
 

(ii) A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed 
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 
(iii) After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 
 

(iv) The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on 
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

 
(v) A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to 
verify the same. 

 
(vi) Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 

Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 
rai_nisl2007@yahoo.com (designated email address by company), if they have voted from 
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same. 

 
(vii) If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting 

System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 and 
022-23058542/43. 

 
11) All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. 

Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th 
Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 
400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43. 

 
12) Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become Member of the Company after 

despatch of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e.15/09/2023 may follow the same 
instructions  as mentioned above for e-Voting. 
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13) If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting 
System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 
and 022-23058542/43. 
 

        All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. 
Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th 
Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai 
- 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43. 
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STATEMENT ANNEXED PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN 
RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
ITEM NO.3 
 
The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
appointed Mrs. Palak Garg (woman) as an Additional Director on 14/08/2023 under section Section 161(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. She is an Independent Director in terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and has given declaration of independence under section 149(6) of the Act. In terms of the provisions 
of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Palak Garg will hold office till the date of ensuing 
Annual General Meeting. Mrs. Palak Garg fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and rules made 
thereunder for her appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent of the 
management. Mrs. Palak Garg, being eligible has offered herself for appointment as a Director. 
 
Board recommend appointment of Mrs. Palak Garg as an Independent Director for a term of 5 (Five) years. 
Copy of the draft letter for appointment of Mrs. Palak Garg as an Independent Director setting out the 
terms and conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered 
Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day till the date of AGM. 
 
Except Mrs. Palak Garg, no other Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 
relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3. 
 
ITEM NO. 4 
 
The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and 
remuneration of M/s J. K. Kabra & Company, for financial year ending March 31, 2024, subject to the 
approval of the Central Government, if any, the remuneration of the Cost Auditors has been approved and 
recommended at Rs.25000/-. The relevant Form regarding appointment and remuneration of the Cost 
Auditors approved by the Board has been filed with the Central Government as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the 
Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought as set out in the Resolution at item No.4 of the 
Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor, subject to the approval of the 
Central Government for the financial year ending March 31, 2024 for conducting cost audit and giving 
their report thereon. 
 
ITEM NO. 5 
 
Pursuant to Section 62(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, to enable the Company to raise loans to be 
convertible into securities i.e. equity shares/convertible, non-convertible preference shares of the Company, 
the Company is required to pass Special Resolution prior to the raising of such loans. 
 
With a view to expansion of Business and meet its working capital requirements of the Company, 
Management of the Company desires to raise loans from the various types of lenders i.e Body 
Corporate/Banks/NBFC/Financial Institutions etc., to be convertible into securities i.e. equity 
shares/convertible, non-convertible preference shares of the Company. The Board of Directors in their 
meeting held on 14/08/2023 accorded approval for conversion of any loan that the Company may borrow 
from Various Lenders via Loan Agreement executed/ to be executed by the Company upto amount of INR 
120,00,00,000/ (Indian Rupees One Hundred twenty Crores only), and such loan can be converted into the 
Equity Shares of the Company at a later date, at the option of the Lenders, upon such terms and conditions 
as may be deemed appropriate by the Board and as stipulated in the Loan Agreement at a price will be 
decided at the time of conversion. This would provide an enabling option to the Various Lenders, to 
convert the whole or any part of such outstanding loans into securities i.e. equity shares/convertible, non-
convertible preference shares of the Company. 
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Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution as set forth in the item no. 5 of the Notice, for the 
consideration and approval of the Members of the Company as Special Resolution, to enable the Company 
to raise loans from Various types of Lenders, the whole or part of their respective outstanding loans into the 
fully paid Equity Shares of the Company, at their option, upon such terms and conditions as may be 
deemed appropriate by the Board and/or as stipulated in the Loan Agreement. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Persons or their relatives, except the director whose loan is 
converted into the Equity Shares and his relatives, in any way, concerned or interested in the said 
resolution, except to their respective Shareholding of the company, if any. 
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the 
shareholders. 
 
 

Place:  New Delhi 
Dated:14/08/2023    

   

By order of the Board 
For  Nova Iron and Steel Limited 

 

  Dheeraj Kumar 
         Company Secretary 
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